
    

2015-1006 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 1 - 

TOWN OF SOUTH PRAIRIE 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015, 7:00 PM 
South Prairie Town Hall 

121 NW Washington Street 
 

The following is a condensation of the proceedings and is not a verbatim transcript. 

  
CALL TO ORDER: 
At 7:00 PM, Mayor Tony Caldwell called to order and presided over the Regular Council Meeting of 
Tuesday, October 6, 2015. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Council Members:   Stu Terry, Jan Twardoski, Barb Wigton and Vicky Watkins were present.  Roy 
Hanson was absent. 
Also in attendance:  Joe Mills, South Prairie Creek RV Park; Chris Kelsey, BHC Consultants; Mary 
Wilkes, Water System Engineering; Sean Crawley, NSI Networking; James Morgan, Town Engineer; 
Judy Tremblay, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer; and Marla Nevill, Clerk/Treasurer. 
 
FLAG SALUTE: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell requested everyone stand for the “Pledge of Allegiance.” 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA FOR OCTOBER 6, 2015: 
� Terry/Twardoski moved and seconded to approve the Agenda for October 6, 2015.  Mayor Tony 

Caldwell said under the Engineering Report, we have three engineers here tonight to briefly go over 
some issues with our Water and Sewer Departments.  Motion carried unanimously. 

     
ENGINEERING REPORT: 
1)  South Prairie Creek RV Park – On-Site Sanitary Sewer System: 
James Morgan said he completed the second review of the plans for South Prairie Creek RV Park On-
Site Sanitary Sewer System.  He recommended Town approval of the plans.  Discussion followed.   
 
2)  Water and Sewer System Utilities: 
James Morgan said last month he opened discussions with engineering firms; and he reached out to 
Chris Kelsey and Mary Wilkes as he thought they would be a good fit for the Town.  Mayor Tony 
Caldwell asked Jim if he would be here until the end of the year.  James Morgan said yes, he’s here until 
the end of the year.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said we have a couple of projects we’re working on and he’d 
have Marla forward him the information.  Discussion followed.   
 
Mayor Tony Caldwell introduced Chris Kelsey from BHC Consultants.  Chris Kelsey said we’ve had 
discussions with the Mayor, Utility Operator and Washington Department of Ecology (WDOE).  He said 
the Mayor asked that they develop a draft Scope of Work to assess the issues at the South Prairie 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  It was his understanding that the Towns desires to add 
connections to the WWTP; and add those businesses that are currently on a holding tank.  He said they 
took a tour of the WWTP and collected data from the operator.  He said the operator stated he is having 
trouble meeting discharge requirements to the creek.  He said the draft Scope would assess what you have 
now.  He said they would look at existing equipment and come up with a brief memo comparing what 
you have with your permit.  He said it’s an expensive endeavor; and we need to pursue funding 
opportunities.  He said he would coordinate with WDOE to put the Town in the best positive position for 
financial assistance.  He said public money is hard to come by and it’s very competitive; and there are a 
series of steps you have to go through to minimize our efforts and check all the boxes that regulatory 



    

2015-1006 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 2 - 

agencies require.  Discussion followed.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said Chris is doing a study to do an 
evaluation of the town’s income.  He said he spoke to Greg from WDOE; and he said he would help us 
with the income survey.  James Morgan said you have to do a localized survey.  Councilor Barb 
Wigton asked about the timeframe.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said the deadline for the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) is October 16th; but he did not think we could make that deadline and 
we should try for the 2016 deadline.  Chris Kelsey said there are other funding options.  He said he as 
inundated Marla and Tony with information.  Discussion followed. 
 
Mary Wilkes stated she briefly looked at the Water System Plan; and it looks like you have plenty of 
capacity for your projected needs for the future.  She said she has prepared over a dozen Water System 
Plans over the last ten years.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said John Ryding with the Washington Department 
of Health (WDOH) is not happy and stated we need to update our Water System Plan before we could 
add more connections.  Discussion followed.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said he invited Mary here to 
introduce herself to the Council.  Discussion followed.  Mary Wilkes said the Council would have a 
month to review the document.  She said the WDOH review is what takes the time.  James Morgan said 
WDOH has three month to review the document.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said it sounds like an item for 
the 2016 Budget.  Discussion followed.           
 
APPROVAL OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2015: 
� Terry/Twardoski moved and seconded to approve the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of 

September 1, 2015.  Discussion followed. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,641.15: 
� Terry/Twardoski moved and seconded to approve the Bills for September 2015 in the amount of 

$58,641.15 (fifty-eight thousand six hundred forty-one dollars and fifteen cents).  Discussion 
followed.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS: 
None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1)  Preliminary Budget Review and Schedule Budget Workshop for October 20, 2015, 7:00 PM; and 
Schedule Public Hearing for FY 2016 Budget and Setting Tax Levy Rates for November 3, 2015, 
7:00 PM:   
� Terry/Wigton moved and seconded to schedule the Budget Workshop for October 20, 2015, 7:00 

PM; and schedule the Public Hearing for FY 2016 and Setting Tax Levy Rates for November 3, 2015, 
7:00 PM.  Discussion followed.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
2) Approval of Fence Repairs and Replacement: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell explained the fence repairs/and or replacement that was needed at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, Well house on SW Third Street, Third Street Park and the Sewer Outfall.  
� Terry/Watkins moved and seconded to award the project to C & P Fencing with an estimate of 

$2,571.20 (two thousand five hundred seventy-one dollars and twenty cents).  Discussion followed.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT: 
1) Mayor Tony Caldwell said we have been dealing with some water and sewer issues; and we are 
working on repairing the roadway on Rainier Avenue.  He said we went with Flohawks for the electrical 



    

2015-1006 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 3 - 

repairs at the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  He said the cost for the repairs is time and materials.  
Discussion followed.   
2) Councilor Barb Wigton asked about the letter from the insurance.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said he 
turned this over to our utility workers; and we are using community service workers as much as possible.  
He said only Town staff could operate the equipment.  Discussion followed.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said 
the planter box at the triangle was damaged a few months ago; and he had the utility workers removed the 
railroad ties and the Cares Committee would take over to finish the project. 
3) Mayor Tony Caldwell said the Labor Agreement negotiations is coming up and requested those 
committee members stay after the Council meeting.  Discussion followed. 
4) Mayor Tony Caldwell said it was reported to him that someone was living in the building next to the 
Third Street Park.  He said he spoke to the property owner; and they said they would take care of it.  
Discussion followed. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS’ REPORT: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell said he included the Public Works’ Report with the Mayor’s Report.  He said the 
Utility Operator is trying to stay on top of things.  He said the word is out there that we have sewer 
connections.  He said the RV Park is working on moving RVs and installing an on-site septic system.  
Discussion followed. 
 

CLERK’S REPORT: 
Marla Nevill said she didn’t have anything.  Judy Tremblay said she would have the rest of the 
preliminary FY2016 Budget ready for the Budget Workshop on October 20, 2015.  Discussion followed. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS REPORT: 
Councilor Stu Terry:  None 
Councilor Jan Twardoski:  None 
Councilor Vicky Watkins: 
1) Veterans Day Remembrance is November 11, 2015, 6:30 PM.  She said the estimate for the event is 
under $200 and asked what she needed to do.  Judy Tremblay explained the procedure to her and said 
she could put a note on the utility bill.  Councilor Vicky Watkins asked about the letters for the reader 
board.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said she could check out the letters from Town Hall.  Discussion 
followed. 
2) Councilor Vicky Watkins said Gary Erath sprayed some thistles at Third Street Park and asked to 
have them removed.  She said there are two benches that are broken at Third Street Park.  Discussion 
followed. 
3) Councilor Vicky Watkins said the Cares Committee would be spreading beauty bark this weekend.  
Discussion followed.      
Councilor Barb Wigton: 
1) Councilor Barb Wigton said we need to get a load of gravel and level the parking lot at the Town 
Hall.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said he would follow up on this project  

   
ADJOURNMENT: 
� At 8:02 PM, Wigton/Twardoski moved and seconded to recess to October 20, 2015, 7:00 PM for the 

Recessed Council Meeting/Budget Workshop.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

Date Approved:  November 3, 2015  


